09/14/2022

NOTICE OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BEDC)
Monday, September 19, 2022 — 5:00 P.M.

Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas

1. CALL TO ORDER

K I R R R I I R R O R R R R R R R O R R R O

The BEDC Board reserves the right to convene into Executive Session at any time during the
meeting regarding any agenda item in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter
551 Government Code.

K I R R R I R R R R R R R R R R R R O R I O R O R O R O

2. PUBLIC COMMENT(S)

3. REGULAR BUSINESS & PRESENTATIONS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

Approval of meeting minutes from the BEDC Board Meeting of August 15, 2022,
Special Board Meeting of August 26, 2022, and Special Board Meeting of September
9, 2022. (page 3)

Receive financial report provided by City of Bastrop’s Chief Financial Officer for the
period ending August 2022 and treasurer’'s comments. (page 8)

Presentation and update by Doucet & Associates engineering regarding Bastrop
Business and Industrial Park infrastructure projects. (page 18)

Presentation, consideration, and possible action on Resolution R-2022-0009 approving
a Professional Services Agreement with Doucet & Associates for engineering services
for the southern portion of the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park. (page 19)

Discussion and possible action concerning the location of the BEDC office. (page 51)

Discussion and possible action on approving an employment agreement with Bret
Gardella as the Chief Executive Officer of the BEDC. (page 52)

Discussion and possible action on BEDC Consultant Weathers’ agreement. (page 53)

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION

41.

4.2.

The BEDC Board of Directors will meet in a closed/executive session pursuant to the
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, to discuss the following:

(1) Section 551.074 Personnel Matters — Discussion on Chief Executive Officer
Employment Agreement

(2) Section 551.087 Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations —
Project Western Edge, Colorado Bend Project (Project Walk for Fame), Project
Olive, Project Triple Arrow, Project Purple, and Project Sharp

The BEDC Board of Directors will reconvene into open session to discuss, consider,
and take any action necessary related to the executive sessions noted herein.

5. ADJOURNMENT

Bastrop EDC Board Meeting Agenda 09/19/2022 1



09/14/2022

CERTIFICATE

I, Angela Ryan, Operations Manager of the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (BEDC), certify that this
Amended Notice of Meeting was posted at Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street, and on the BEDC’s website on
this the 14th of September 2022 at 5:00 p.m. Copies of this agenda have been provided to those members of the media
requesting such information.

Angela Ryan
Angela Ryan, BEDC Operations Manager

THE BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION IS COMMITTED TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT. REASONABLE MODIFICATIONS AND EQUAL ACCESS WILL BE PROVIDED UPON REQUEST. PLEASE
CALL 512-303-9700.

Bastrop EDC Board Meeting Agenda 09/19/2022 2



09/14/2022

pastrop

EDC Agenda Item: 3.1

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

Agenda Item: Approval of meeting minutes from the BEDC Board Meeting of August 15, 2022,
Special Board Meeting of August 26, 2022, and Special Board Meeting of
September 9, 2022.

Submitted by: Angela Ryan, BEDC Operations Manager

The minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of August 15, 2022, the Special Board Meeting of
August 26, 2022, and the Special Board Meeting of September 9, 2022, are attached for the Board’s
review.

Attachments:

Draft 08/15/22 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
Draft 08/26/22 Special Board Meeting Minutes
Draft 09/09/22 Special Board Meeting Minutes

Recommendation — Approve the meeting minutes as submitted.

[RECOMMENDED MOTION] — I move to approve the meeting minutes as submitted.




09/14/2022

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BEDC)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Minutes of Monthly Meeting, August 15, 2022
Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas

The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) met on Monday, August 15, 2022, at
5:00 p.m. for a Regular Board Meeting at Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street. Board members
present: Ron Spencer, Jenn Wahl, Bill Gossett, Kevin Plunkett, Connie Schroeder, Lyle Nelson
and Jeff Haladyna. Staff members present: Angela Ryan and Jean Riemenschneider.

1. CALL TO ORDER - Board Chair Spencer called the special meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT(S) — There were no public comments.

3. REGULAR BUSINESS & PRESENTATIONS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

Approval of meeting minutes from the BEDC Board Meeting of July 18, 2022. Board
member Mr. Nelson made the motion to approve the minutes, Mr. Plunkett seconded,
and the motion passed.

Receive financial report provided by City of Bastrop’s Chief Financial Officer for the
period ending July 2022 and treasurer’'s comments. Mr. Gossett reported that revenues
are up and expenditures are down. He also told the Board that the invoice for the
broadband study had been processed.

Presentation by BEDC consultant Steve Weathers about proposed revisions to the
BEDC Strategic Plan, and Scope of Work — Coordination and Accountability. Mr.
Weathers gave an update to the Board about the latest draft of the strategic plan.

Presentation and update by Doucet & Associates engineering regarding Bastrop
Business and Industrial Park infrastructure projects. David Speicher with Doucet gave
an update about the project. They are approximately 75% complete with drainage
design and had made some adjustments to the road alignment due to utility easements.

Presentation, consideration, and possible action on a proposal by Doucet & Associates
for completion of the southern portion of the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park to
provide shovel-ready sites. Mr. Speicher presented the updated proposal to the Board,
saying that he had done as they had requested and removed the construction from the
engineering portion. The consensus of the Board was for Doucet to draft a Professional
Services Agreement (PSA) for the next board meeting.

Discussion, consideration, and possible action on establishing a price per acre for the
properties in the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park currently owned by the BEDC
and repealing all prior policies and resolutions. Action on this item was taken after
executive session.

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION

41.

At 5:24 p.m., the BEDC Board of Directors met in a closed/executive session pursuant
to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, to discuss the following:

(1) Section 551.074 Personnel Matters — Discussion on Chief Executive Officer
Position

Bastrop EDC Board Meeting Agenda 08/15/2022 1



09/14/2022

(2) Section 551.087 Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations —
Project Western Edge, Colorado Bend Project (Project Walk for Fame), Project
Olive, and Project Sharp

(3) Section 551.072 Deliberation regarding real property (agenda item 3.6)

4.2. At7:08 p.m., the BEDC Board of Directors will reconvened into open session to discuss,
consider, and take any action necessary related to the executive sessions noted herein.

Ms. Gossett made the motion to repeal all property policies in effect for the purposes
of selling and marketing the properties of BEDC, and to direct staff to conduct a CMA
(Commercial Marketing Analysis) on the remaining properties for future negotiations.
Ms. Schroeder seconded, and the motion passed.

5. ADJOURNMENT - Mr. Gossett made the motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Spencer
seconded. The board meeting was adjourned at 7:09 p.m.

APPROVED: ATTEST:
Ron Spencer, Board Chair Angela Ryan, Operations Manager

Bastrop EDC Board Meeting Agenda 08/15/2022 2



09/14/2022

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BEDC)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Minutes of Special Meeting August 26, 2022
Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas

The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) met on Friday, August 26, 2022, at
8:00 a.m. for a Special Board Meeting at Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street. Board members
present: Ron Spencer, Jenn Wahl, Bill Gossett, Kevin Plunkett, Connie Schroeder, Lyle Nelson
and Jeff Haladyna. Staff members present: Angela Ryan.

1. CALL TO ORDER - Board Chair Spencer called the special meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.
2. PUBLIC COMMENT(S) — There were no public comments.
3. EXECUTIVE SESSION

3.1. At 8:04 a.m. the Bastrop EDC Board of Directors met in a closed/executive session
pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, to discuss the following:

(1) Section 551.074 Personnel Matters — Interviews for Chief Executive Officer
Position.

3.2. At 11:55 a.m. the Bastrop EDC Board of Directors reconvened into open session to
discuss, consider, and take any action necessary related to the executive sessions
noted herein. There was no action taken.

4. ADJOURNMENT — Mr. Plunkett made the motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Gossett
seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 11:56 a.m.

APPROVED: ATTEST:
Ron Spencer, Board Chair Angela Ryan, Operations Manager

Bastrop EDC Special Board Meeting Minutes 08/26/2022



09/14/2022

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BEDC)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Minutes of Special Meeting September 9, 2022
Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas

The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) met on Friday, September 9, 2022, at
3:00 p.m. for a Special Board Meeting at Bastrop City Hall, 1311 Chestnut Street. Board members
present: Ron Spencer, Jenn Wahl, Bill Gossett, Kevin Plunkett, Connie Schroeder, and Lyle
Nelson. Staff members present: Angela Ryan and Jean Riemenschneider.

1. CALL TO ORDER - Board Chair Spencer called the special meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.
2. PUBLIC COMMENT(S) — There were no public comments.
3. REGULAR BUSINESS & PRESENTATIONS

3.1. Consider action to approve the hiring of Bret Gardella as the Executive Director/CEO of
the BEDC.

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION

4.1. At 3:01 p.m. the Bastrop EDC Board of Directors met in a closed/executive session
pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, to discuss the following:

(1) Section 551.074 Personnel Matters — Interviews for Chief Executive Officer
Position.

4.2. At 3:15 p.m. the Bastrop EDC Board of Directors reconvened into open session to
discuss, consider, and take any action necessary related to the executive sessions
noted herein.

Mr. Plunkett made the motion to move forward with the creation of an employment
contract with Bret Gardella based on the terms of the offer letter discussed in executive
session. Ms. Wahl seconded, and the motion passed.

5. ADJOURNMENT - Mr. Plunkett made the motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Nelson
seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 3:16 p.m.

APPROVED: ATTEST:
Ron Spencer, Board Chair Angela Ryan, Operations Manager

Bastrop EDC Special Board Meeting Minutes 09/09/2022



09/14/2022

bastrop

Ebc Agenda Item: 3.2

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

Agenda Item: Receive financial report provided by City of Bastrop’s Chief Financial Officer for
the period ending August 2022 and treasurer’s comments.

Prepared by: Tracy Waldron, City of Bastrop CFO

Attached for the Board’s review and consideration is the BEDC financial summary report for the
period ending August 2022.

Attachment:
August 2022 Financial Report

Recommendation — None; item presented for informational purposes.

[RECOMMENDED MOTION] — No motion required.




09/14/2022

Bastrop Economic Development
Corporation

Financial Summary
For Period Ending
August 2022

pastrop

EDC



09/14/2022 10

bastrop

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures EDC
As of August 31, 2022

OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

REVENUES VS EXPENSES

FY2022 FY2022 Monthly
$650,000
Month Revenue Expense Variance
0t § W § AR BIESY |
Nov 283,075 86,631 5 196444
Dec 302,264 71,40 5 231,024 $450,000
Jan 333,467 2054725 107,995
Feb 1,195,092 207945 S 977,147 i
Mar 239,285 399229 5 (159,944)
Apr 67419 1137711 § (870592 | AL
May 623,475 58,684 5 564,791
150,000
Jun 330,902 190383 § 140519
Jul 336,513 330567 S 5946 Ss00
Aug 361,404 99913 S 261492 Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept
Sept S - Revenue  Expense

Total § 4,559,749 | 5 2,873,268 [ $ 1,686,481

The monthly variance can be explained partially from unfilled budgeted positions, unexpensed capital
projects, and timing on expenditures. February reflects the sale of property to Moca Ventures with a
Positive gain of $841,137. March expense was up due to Cox settlement payment and the quarterly 380
rebate payment. The variance in April was the 2018 bond payoff. The variance in May is partially due
to the Land Sale for Super Glue project.




09/14/2022 1

bastrop

Summary of Sales Tax Revenue BBk
As of August 31, 2022
Y2022 022 Monthly [
Month Forecast Actual Variance
Oc 359 S 26590 S B3 |
Nov 28735 26912 S 24177 Ll
Dec shes s § man EE
Jan 250937 302872 S 61935
Feb 319,861 354315 § 34454 |l
Mar WIS w63 S 12692 i
Apr 050 260080 $ 48,028
May WS ST S (6468 |
Jun 299619 32253 $ 2917 |
I 91471 338 S 32,356 .
Aug 329,857 349283 5 19426 Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept
Sept 306,687 Forecast Actual
Forecast YTD § 3,024,813
ActualtoForecast ~ § 310,382 10.3%

Sales Tax revenue is 94% of total revenue (excluding land sale proceeds). The amount in Oct. and Nov. are
estimated due to the timing of receiving the payments. The State Comptroller has a two month lag between month
Positive earned and month distributed. The Actual to forecast year to date is a positive 10%. This budget was almost 11%
increase over FY2021 projected but is still conservative based on the YO increases that are being reported.



09/14/2022

Expenditures Budget to Actual Comparison

As of August 31, 2022

12

bastrop

EDC

OPERATING EXPENDITURES COMPARISON

Category
Personnel

Supplies & Material
Maintenance & Repairs
Occupancy

Contractual Service
Marketing/Advertising
Contingency

Debt Service

Total

Forecast to Actual %

Positive

FY2022
Forecast
S 506,661
11,700
14,680
51,800
460,890
892,512

1,454,891

S 3,393,134

16%

FY2022 Monthly

Actual Variance
S 273,498 S 233,163
11,458 S 242
7,889 S 6,791
46,661 S 5,139
460,300 S 590
679,251 S 213,261

- S -
1,385,290 S 69,601

$2,864,347 S 528,787

The forecast to actual comparison is a positive

16% year-to-date.



09/14/2022 13

bastrop

EDC

Expenditures Budget to Actual Comparison
As of August 31, 2022

CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

FY2022 FY2022 Budget
Project Budget Actual Balance
Business Industrial Park Improv* S 715,500 S 130,760 S 584,740
(added with last Budget Amendment)
Trail System Downtown loop S 13,000 S 8,920 S 4,080
(only engineering and permitting
expenses so far)
Bus. Ind. Park-Tech/MLK Infra 1,537,000 - S 1,537,000
(only engineering expenses so
far)

Total S 2,265,500 S 139,680 S 2,125,820

CO, Series 2013
Business Industrial Park Improv* S 277,026 ** S 112,704 S 164,322

* This project funded by bond funds budgeted from the 2013 CO.
**This is the available balance in this bond fund



09/14/2022 14

bastrop

EDC

Expenditures Budget to Actual Comparison
As of August 31, 2022

380 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

FY2022 FY2022 Budget
Budget Actual Balance
380 Agreement S 285,000 S 317,312 S (32,312)

Total S 285,000 S 317,312 S (32,312)

The only 380 Agreement still active is Burleson Crossing. This agreement states
that 50% of the S1.5 cent sales tax collected (which includes EDC's S0.5) will be
rebated back to the developer until the maximum reimbursement amount is
met or 15 years (which would also be FY2023).

The payoff amount wasn't specific to EDC it was a combined rebate amount
with the City.

The current remaining reimbursement (as of 3/9/2022 developer provided
Actual cost of funds ie. interest) and rebate payments through 6/30/2022, is
S374K. The estimation is that this agreement will carryover into FY23 but a very
small amount.

Due to this increase in sales tax revenue it is likely that EDC will need a budget
amendment to increase the budgeted revenue and the associated rebate 380
expense.



09/14/2022

bastrop |

EDC

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND
FY 2021-2022 BUDGET

Working Capital 9-30-2021 Audited $ 5,906,065

FY 2021-2022

Budgeted
Revenues $ 5,074,414
Total FY 2022 Resources $ 10,980,479

Budgeted Expenditures:

Operating Expenses $ (3,262,922)
Capital Expenses $ (2,265,500)
Debt Service $ (483,456)

$ (6,011,878)
Projected Working Capital Balance 09-30-2022 $ 4,968,601

Reserve 25% of Operating Expense $ 815,730

Revised 3.14.2022



09/14/2022 16

bastrop

EDC

Debt Obligation
As of 4/21/2022

$505,000
$405,000

$305,000

$205,000

$105,000

$5,000
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33

— Total Debt Obligation

This graph reflects the removal of the 921 Main loan
and the payoff of the 2018 bond balance.



09/14/2022

Consulting Payments as of August 31, 2022

Consulting: Steve Weathers

Budgeted amount of $12,500 per month for 7 months = $87,500
YTD Total (5 months of 7-month timeframe) = $62,500/71%

Travel Expenses:
Budgeted Amount = $12,500
YTD Total = $9,668/77%

Recruiting: Jorgenson Consulting

Budgeted Amount = $39,500
YTD Total (1st & 2nd of 3 payments) = $26,333/67%

Travel Expenses:
Budgeted Amount = $10,500
YTD Total = $4,430/42%

17



09/14/2022

pastrop

EDC Agenda Item: 3.3

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

Agenda Item: Receive presentation and update by Doucet & Associates engineering regarding
Bastrop Business and Industrial Park infrastructure projects.

Submitted by: Jean Riemenschneider, BEDC Business Development

A representative from Doucet & Associates will give an update about the infrastructure project in
the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park.

Recommendation — None; item presented for informational purposes.

[RECOMMENDED MOTION]| — No motion required.

18



09/14/2022

pastrop

Epbc Agenda Item: 3.4

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

Agenda Item: Presentation, consideration, and possible action on Resolution R-2022-0009
approving a Professional Services Agreement with Doucet & Associates for
engineering services for the southern portion of the Bastrop Business and Industrial
Park.

Submitted by: Jean Riemenschneider, BEDC Business Development

At the board meeting of July 18, 2022, Doucet presented their opinion of probable cost to build
out the remainder of the Business Park. The Board requested that they separate the engineering
costs from the construction costs.

Doucet provided the requested updated information at the board meeting on August 15, 2022. The
consensus of the Board was for Doucet to submit a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for
the next board meeting.

A representative from their office is scheduled to attend the meeting to present the full scope of
the project to the Board and answer any questions.

Attachments:
Draft Resolution R-2022-0009
PSA with Doucet & Associates

Recommendation — Approve Resolution R-2022-0009 as submitted.

[RECOMMENDED MOTIONS] — [ make the motion to approve Resolution R-2022-0009.

19



09/14/2022

RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-0009

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BASTROP ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ENTERING INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH DOUCET & ASSOCIATES FOR AN INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT IN
THE SOUTHERN UNDEVELOPED PORTION OF THE BASTROP BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRIAL PARK; AUTHORIZING ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS, INCLUDING
EXECUTION OF REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION; AND, PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (“BEDC”) is a public
instrumentality and non-profit industrial development corporation duly established and
operating under Local Government Code, Chapters 501 and 505 et seq., as amended, known
as the Development Corporation Act of 1979 (the “Act”), and is acting with the approval of the
governing body of the City of Bastrop, Texas (the “City”); and

WHEREAS, the BEDC is the current property owner of the majority of property (“Property”)
located in the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park; and

WHEREAS, after careful evaluation and consideration by the Board on August 15, 2022, it
determined that a project proposing to design and construct targeted infrastructure and
improvements (“Project”) was necessary and suitable to promote or develop new or expanded
business enterprises within the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park and, further, that such
infrastructure is limited to permissible infrastructure as an authorized project pursuant to
Section 501.103 of the Texas Local Government Code; and

WHEREAS, to fulfill its public purpose in attracting qualifying projects under Texas Local
Government Code, Chapters 501 and 505 et seq., as amended, the BEDC requires certain
professional services, including without limitation, the contracting with and hiring of an
engineering firm to perform certain engineering, design, permitting, and owner’s
representation during the construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS, Doucet & Associates has proposed a Scope of Work for the preparation of
construction plans, permitting and owner’s representation during the construction of the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION THAT:

SECTION 1. The findings set out above are hereby found to be true and correct and are
incorporated herein for all purposes.

SECTION 2. The BEDC hereby approves the terms of the Professional Services
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, between BEDC and the Developer.

SECTION 3. The Board authorizes the BEDC Board Chair to take all necessary actions,

including the execution of all necessary and related documentation to finalize the
agreement.

Page | 1

20



09/14/2022

RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-0009

SECTION 4. This Resolution is effective upon passage.

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Bastrop Economic
Development Corporation, this day of 2022.

BASTROP ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Ron Spencer, Board Chair

ATTEST:

Jenn Wahl, Board Vice Chair

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Denton, Navarro, Rocha, Bernal & Zech, P.C.

Page | 2

21



09/14/2022

RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-0009

EXHIBIT “A”

Professional Services Agreement by and between the BEDC and Doucet & Associates for
services related to a Bastrop Business & Industrial Park Infrastructure Project

Page | 3

22



09/14/2022

CITY OF BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

STANDARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

o uon

BASTROP COUNTY

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”™) is made and entered by and between the City
of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (the “BEDC”), a Texas non-profit industrial
development corporation, and Doucet & Associates, Inc. {(“Professional™),

Section 1. Duration.

This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by the BEDC and shall remain in effect
until satisfactory completion of the Scope of Work unless terminated as provided for in this
Agreement.

Section 2. Scope of Work.

(A) Professional shall perform the Services as more particularly described in the Scope of Work
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. The work as described in the Scope of Work constitutes
the “Project”. Unless otherwise provided in the Scope of Worlk, the anticipated submittal
of all Project deliverables is immediately upon completion of the Project.

(B) The Quality of Services provided under this Agreement shall be performed with the
professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent Professionals practicing in the
same or similar locality and under the same or similar circumstances and professional
license, and as expeditiously as is prudent considering the ordinary professional skill and
care of a competent Professional holding the same professional license.

(C) The Professional shall perform its Services for the Project in compliance with all statutory,
regulatory and contractual requirements now or hereafter in effect as may be applicable to
the rights and obligations set forth in the Agreement.

(D) The Professional may rely upon the accuracy of reports and surveys provided to it by the
BEDC except when defects should have been apparent to a reasonably competent
professional or when it has actual notice of any defects in the reports and surveys.

Section 3. Compensation.

{A) The Professional shall be paid in the manner set forth in Exhibit “B” and as provided herein.

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

23



09/14/2022

(B)

©

Billing Period: The Professional may submit monthly, or less frequently, an invoice for
payment based on the estimated completion of the described tasks and approved work
schedule. Subject to Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code (the “Prompt Payment Act™),
payment is due within thirty (30) days of the BEDC’s receipt of the Professional’s invoice.
Interest on overdue payments shall be calculated in accordance with the Prompt Payment
Act.

Reimbursable Expenses: Any and all reimbursable expenses related to the Project shall be
accounted for in Exhibit “B”.

Section 4. Changes to the Project Work: Additional Work,

(A)

(B)

Changes to Work: Professional shall make such revisions to any work that has been
completed as are necessary to correct any errors or omissions as may appear in such work,
Ifthe BEDC finds it necessary to make changes to previously satisfactorily completed work
or parts thereof, the Professional shall make such revisions if requested and as directed by
the BEDC and such services will be considered as additional work and paid for as specified
under the following paragraph.

Additional Work: The BEDC retains the right to make changes to the Scope of Work at
any time by a written order. Work that is clearly not within the general description of the
Scope of Work and does not otherwise constitute special services under this Agreement
must be approved in writing by the BEDC by supplemental agreement before the additional
work is undertaken by the Professional. If the Professional is of the opinion that any work
is beyond that contemplated in this Agreement and the Scope of Work governing the
project and therefore constitutes additional work, the Professional shall prompily notify the
BEDC of that opinion, in writing. If the BEDC agrees that such work does constitute
additional work, then the BEDC and the Professional shall execute a supplemental
agreement for the additional work and the BEDC shall compensate the Professional for the
additional work on the basis of the rates contained in the Scope of Work. If the changes
deduct from the extent of the Scope of Work, the contract sum shall be adjusted
accordingly. All such changes shall be executed under the conditions of the original
Agreement. Any work undertaken by Professional not previously approved as additional
work shall be at risk of the Professional.

Section 5. Time of Completion.

The prompt completion of the services under the Scope of Work is critical to the BEDC.
Unnecessatry delays in providing services under a Scope of Work shall be grounds for dismissal of
the Professional and termination of this Agreement without any or further liability to the BEDC
other than a prorated payment for necessary, timely, and conforming work done by Professional
prior to the time of termination. The Scope of Work shall provide, in either calendar days or by
providing a final date, a time of completion prior to which the Professional shall have completed
all tasks and services described i the Scope of Work.

Section 6. Insurance,

BEDC Professional Services Agreement
o

24



09/14/2022

Before commencing work under this Agreement, Professional shall obtain and maintain the liability
insurance provided for in attached Exhibit “C” throughout the term of this Agreement and thereafter
as required herein,

In addition to the insurance provided for in Exhibit “C”, Professional shall maintain the following
limits and types of insurance:

Workers Compensation Insurance: The Professional shall carry and maintain during the term of
this Agreement, workers compensation and employers liability insurance meeting the requirements
of the State of Texas on all the Professional’s employees carrying out the work invelved in this
contract.

General Liability Insurance: The Professional shall carry and maintain during the term of this
Agreement, general liability insurance on a per occurrence basis with limits of liability not less than
$1,000,000 for each occurrence and for fire damage. For Bodily Injury and Property Damage,
coverage shall be no less than $1,000,000. As a minimum, coverage for Premises, Operations,
Products and Completed Operations shall be $2,000,000. This coverage shall protect the public or
any person from injury or property damages sustained by reason of the Professional or its
employees carrying out the work involved in this Agreement. The general aggregate shall be no
less than $2,000,000.

Automobile Liability Insurance: Professional shall carry and maintain during the term of this
Agreement, automobile liability insurance with cither a combined limit of at least $1,000,000 per
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage or split limits of at least $1,000,000 for bodily
injury per person per occurrence and $1,000,000 for property damage per occurrence. Coverage
shall include all owned, hired, and non-owned motor vehicles used in the performance of this
contract by the Professional or its employees.

Subcontractor: In the case of any worle sublet, the Professional shall require subcontractor and
independent contractors working under the direction of either the Professional or a subcontractor
to carry and maintain the same workers compensation and liability insurance required of the
Professional.

Qualitying Insurance: The insurance required by this Agreement shall be written by a non-
assessable insurance company licensed to do business in the State of Texas and currently rated
“B+" or better by the A.M. Best Companies. All policies shall be written on a “per occurrence
basis™ and not a “claims made” form,

Evidence of such insurance shall be attached as Exiubit “D”.

Section 7. Miscellaneous Provisions.

(A) Subletting. The Professional shall not sublet or transfer any portion of the work under this
Agreement or any Scope of Work issued pursuant to this Agreement unless specifically
approved in writing by the BEDC, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Subcontractors shall comply with all provisions of this Agreement and the applicable
Scope of Work. The approval or acquiescence of the BEDC in the subletting of any work
shall not relieve the Professional of any responsibility for work done by such subcontractor.,

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

25



09/14/2022

(B)

©

(D)

(E}

(F)

Ownership of Documents. Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, ail
documents prepared by the Professional or furnished to the Professional by the BEDC shall
be delivered to and become the property of the BEDC. All drawings, charts, calculations,
plans, specifications and other data, including electronic files and raw data, prepared under
or pursuant to this Agreement, shall be made available, upon request, to the BEDC without
restriction or limitation on the further use of such materials; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
THAT SUCH MATERIALS ARE NOT INTENDED OR REPRESENTED TO BE
SUITABLE FOR REUSE BY THE BEDC OR OTHERS. ANY REUSE WITHOUT
PRIOR VERIFICATION OR ADAPTATION BY THE PROFESSIONAL FOR THE
SPECIFIC PURPOSE INTENDED WILL BE AT THE BEDC’S SOLE RISK AND
WITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE PROFESSIONAL. Where applicable, Professional shall
retain all pre-existing proprietary rights in the materials provided to the BEDC but shall
grant to the BEDC a non-exclusive, perpetual, royalty-free license to use such proprietary
information solely for the purposes for which the information was provided. The
Professional may, at Professional’s expense, have copies made of the documents or any
other data furnished to the BEDC under or pursuant to this Agreement.

Professional’s Seal. To the extent that the Professional has a professional seal, it shall be
placed on all documents and data furnished by the Professional to the BEDC. All work and
services provided under this Agreement will be performed in a good and workmanlike
fashion and shall conform to the accepted standards and practices of the Professional’s
industry. The plans, specifications and data provided by Professional shall be adequate and
sufficient to enable those performing the actual work to perform the work as and within
the time contemplated by the BEDC and Professional. The BEDC acknowiedges that
Professional has no control over the methods or means of work nor the costs of labor,
materials or equipment. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, any estimates of costs by the
Professional are for informational purposes only and are not guarantees.

Compliance with Laws. The Professional shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts,
administrative, or regulatory bodies in any matter affecting the performance of this
Agreement, including, without limitation, workers compensation laws, minimum and
maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.
When required, the Professional shall furnish the BEDC with satisfactory proof of
compliance.

Independent Contractor. Professional acknowledges that Professional is an independent
contractor of the BEDC and is not an employee, agent, official or representative of the
BEDC, Professional shall not represent, either expressly or through implication, that
Professional is an employee, agent, official or representative of the BEDC. Income taxes,
self-employment taxes, social security taxes and the like are the sole responsibility of the
Professional.

Non-Collusion. Professional represents and warrants that Professional has not given, made,
promised or paid, nor offered to give, make, promise or pay any gift, bonus, commission,
money or other consideration to any person as an inducement to or in order to obtain the
work to be provided to the BEDC under this Agreement. Professional further agrees that
Professional shall not accept any gift, bonus, commission, money, or other consideration
from any person (other than from the BEDC pursuant to this Agreement) for any of the

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

26



09/14/2022

(@

(H)

services performed by Professional under or related to this Agreement. If any such gift,
bonus, commission, money, or other consideration is received by or offered to Professional,
Professional shall immediately report that fact to the BEDC and, at the sole option of the
BEDC, the BEDC may elect to accept the consideration for itself or to take the value of
such consideration as a credit against the compensation otherwise owing to Professional
under or pursuant to this Agreement.

Force Majewre. 1f the performance of any covenant or obligation to be performed
hereunder by any party is delayed as a result of circumstances which are beyond the
reasonable control of such party (which circumstances may include, without limitation,
pending litigation, acts of God, war, acts of civil disobedience, fire or other casualty,
shortage of materials, adverse weather conditions [such as, by way of illustration and not
of limitation, severe rain storms or below freezing temperatures, or tornados] labor action,
strikes or similar acts, moratoriums or regulations or actions by governmental authorities),
the time for such performance shall be extended by the amount of time of such delay, but
no longer than the amount of time reasonably occasioned by the delay. The party claiming
delay of performance as a result of any of the foregoing force majeure events shall deliver
written notice of the commencement of any such delay resulting from such force majeure
event not later than seven (7) days after the claiming party becomes aware of the same, and
if the claiming party fails to so notify the other party of the occurrence of a force majeure
event causing such delay and the other party shall not otherwise be aware of such force
majeure event, the claiming party shall not be entitled to avail itself of the provisions for
the extension of performance contained in this subsection.

[n the case of any conflicts between the terms of this Agreement and wording contained
within the Scope of Services, this Agreement shall govern. The Scope of Services is
intended to detail the technical scope of services, fee schedule, and contract time only and
shall not dictate Agreement terms.

Section 8. Termination.

(A)

(B)

This Agreement may be terminated:
(1) By the mutual agreement and consent of both Professional and BEDC;

(2) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth
in either this Agreement or a Scope of Work issued under this Agreement;

(3) By the BEDC, immediately upon notice in writing to the Professional, as consequence
of the failure of Professional to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement
in a timely or satisfactory manner;

(4) By the BEDC, at will and without cause upon not less than thirty (30) days written
notice to the Professional.

If the BEDC terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 5 or subsection 8(A)(2) or (3),
above, the Professional shall not be entitled to any fees or reimbursable expenses other than
the fees and reimbursable expenses then due and payable as of the time of termination and
only then for those services that have been timely and adequately performed by the
Professional considering the actual costs incurred by the Professional in performing work

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

27



09/14/2022

to date of termination, the value of the work that is nonetheless usable to the BEDC, the
cost to the BEDC of employing another Professional to complete the work required and
the time required to do so, and other factors that affect the value to the BEDC of the work
performed at time of termination. In the event of termination that is not the fault of the
Professional, the Professional shall be compensated for all basic, special, and additional
services actually performed prior to termination, together with any reimbursable expenses
then due.

Section 9. Indemnification. Professional shall indemnify and hold harmless the City of
Bastrop, Texas, Economic Development Corporation and its officials, employees and agents
(collectively referred to as “Indemnitees™) and each of them from and against all loss, costs,
penalties, fines, damages, claims, expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) or liabilities
(collectively referred to as “Liabilities”) by reason of any injury to or death of any person or
damage to or destruction or loss of any property arising out of, resulting from, or in
connection with (i) the performance or non-performance of Services contemplated by this
Agreement but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions, intentional
torts, intellectual property infringement, or a failure to pay a sub-contractor or supplier
committed by Professional or Professional’s agent, consultant under contract, or another
entity over which Professional exercises control (whether active or passive) of Professional or
its employees, agents or sub-contractors (collectively referred to as “Professional™), (ii) the
failure of Professional to comply with any of the paragraphs herein or the failure of
Professional to conform to statutes, ordinances, or other regulations or requirements of any
governmental authority, federal, state or local, in connection with the performance of this
Agreement, Professional expressly agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees,
or any one of them, from and against all liabilities which may be asserted by an emplovee or
former employee of Professional, or any of its sub-contractors, as provided above, for which
Professional’s liability to such employee or former employee would otherwise be limited to
payments under State Workers Compensation or similar laws. Nothing herein shall require
Professional to indemnity, defend, or hold harmless any Indemnitee for the Indemnitee’s own
negligence or willful misconduct. Any and all indemnity provided for in this Agreement shall
survive the expiration of this Agreement and the discharge of all other obligations owed by
the parties to each other hereunder and shall apply prospectively not only during the term of
this Agreement but thereafter so long as any liability could be asserted in regard to any acts
or omissions of Professional in performing Services under this Agreement.

For Professienal Liability Claims, Professional shall be liable for reasonable defense costs
incurred by Indemnitees but only after final adjudication and to the extent and percent that
Professional or Professional’s agents are found negligent or otherwise at fault. As used in this
Agreement, final adjudication includes any negotiated settlement and release of claims,
without limitation as to when a negotiated settlement and release of claims occurs. The
Professional’s liability under this Agreement is limited to 2 maximum of $2,000,000.

Section 10. Notices. Any notice required or desired to be given from one party to the other party
to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given and shall be deemed to have been served
and received (whether actually received or not) if (i) delivered in person to the address set forth
below; (ii) deposited in an official depository under the regular care and custody of the United
States Postal Service located within the confines of the United States of America and sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, and addressed to such party at the address hereinafter
specified; or (iii} delivered to such party by courier receipted delivery. Either party may designate

BEDC Professional Services Agreement n



09/14/2022

another address within the confines of the continental United States of America for notice, but until
written notice of such change is actually received by the other party, the last address of such party
designated for notice shall remain such party’s address for notice.

Section 11. No Assignment. Neither party shall have the right to assign that party’s interest in this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

Section 12, Severability. [f any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid
or unenforceable, the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining terms or provisions of this
Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and in lieu of each such illegal, invalid or unenforceable
term or provision, there shali be added automatically to this Agreement a legal, valid or enforceable
term or provision as similar as possible to the term or provision declared illegal, invalid or
unenforceable.

Section 13. Waiver. Either BEDC or the Professional shall have the right to waive any requirement
contained in this Agreement that is intended for the waiving party’s benefit, but, except as otherwise
provided herein, such waiver shall be effective only if in writing executed by the party for whose
benefit such requirement is intended. No waiver of any breach or violation of any term of this
Agreement shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any other breach or violation,
whether concurrent or subsequent, and whether of the same or of a different type of breach or
violation.

Section 14. Governing Law: Venue. This Agreement and all of the transactions contemplated
herein shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The
provisions and obligations of this Agreement are performable in Bastrop County, Texas, such that
exclusive venue for any action arising out of this Agreement shall be in Bastrop County, Texas.

Section 15. Paragraph Headings; Construction. The paragraph headings contained in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall in no way enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of
the various and several paragraphs hereof. Both parties have participated in the negotiation and
preparation of this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be construed either more or less
strongly against or for either party.

Section 16. Binding Effect. Except as limited herein, the terms and provisions of this Agreement
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs,
devisees, personal and legal representatives, successors and assigns.

Section 17. Gender. Within this Agreement, words of any gender shall be held and construed to
include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held and construed to include
the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.

Section 18, Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same
instrwment.

Section 19. Exhibits. All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference for all
purposes wherever reference is made to the same.

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

29



09/14/2022

Section 20, Entire Agreement, [t is understood and agreed that this Agreement contains the entire
agreement between the parties and supersedes any and all prior agreements, arrangements or
understandings between the parties relating to the subject matter. No oral understandings,
statements, promises or inducements contrary to the terms of this Agreement exist. This Agreement
cannot be changed or terminated orally.

Section 21. Relationship of Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or
construed by the parties hereto or by any third party to create the relationship of principal and agent
or of partnership or of joint venture or of any association whatsoever between the parties, it being
expressly understood and agreed that no provision contained in this Agreement nor any act or acts
of the parties hereto shall be deemed to create any relationship between the parties other than the
relationship of independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purpose of effecting
the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 22. Dispute Resolution. The parties agree that, prior to instituting any lawsuit or other
proceeding arising from a dispute under this agreement, the parties will first attempt to resolve the
dispute by taking the following steps: {1} A written notice substantially describing the nature of the
dispute shall be delivered by the dissatisfied party to the other party, which notice shall request a
written response to be delivered to the dissatisfied party not less than five (5) days after receipt of
the notice of dispute. (2) If the response does not reasonably resolve the dispute, in the opinion of
the dissatisfied party, the dissatisfied party shall give notice to that effect to the other party
whereupon each party shall appoint a person having authority over the activities of the respective
parties wheo shall promptly meet, in person, in an effort to resolve the dispute. (3) If those persons
cannot or do not resolve the dispute, then the parties shall each appoint a person from the highest
tier of managerial responsibility within each respective party, who shall then promptly meet, in
person, in an effort to resolve the dispute.

Section 23. Disclosure of Business Relationships/Affiliations; Conflict _of Interest
Questionnaire. Professional represents that it is in compliance with the applicable filing and
disclosure requirements of Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, Conflicts of Interest
Questionnaire and Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code, Form 1295 Certificate of
interested Parties online filing with the Texas Ethics Commission.

EXECUTED on this the day of ,20
BEDC: PROFESSIO
Y. .
By: By: ;
Name: Name: Jo}{n Doucet /
[
Title: Title: Executive Vice President

ADDRESS FOR NOTICE:

BEDC: PROFESSIONAL:
City of Bastrop Economic Development Doucet & Associates, Inc,
Corporation

BEDC Professional Services Agreement n



09/14/2022

Attm: Executive Director
301 Highway 71 West, Suite 214
Bastrop, Texas 78602

With a copy to:

BEDC Attorney

City of Bastrop Economic Development
Corporation

Attn: Charles E. Zech

2517 N. Main Avenue

San Antonio, Texas 78212

Attn: John Doucet
7401B Highway 71 West, Suitel 60
Austin, TX 78735

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

31



09/14/2022

Exhibit “A”
SCOPE OF WORK

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

32



09/14/2022

ST, 7401B Highway 71 West, Suite 160

' Austin, TX 78735
Office: 512.583.2600

Fax: 512.583.2601

D 0 U c E T Doucetengineers.com

June 24, 2022 (Original)
July 25, 2022 (Revision 1)
August 22, 2022

Ms. Jean Riemenschneider

Bastrop Economic Development Corporation
301 Highway 71 West, Suite 214

Bastrop, Texas 78602

Phone: (512) 332-8870

Re: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services
Bastrop EDC Industrial Park
Bastrop, Bastrop County, Texas

Proposal: Technology and Jackson Street extension
DS 2014-005

Dear Ms. Riemenschneider,

Doucet & Associates, Inc. (Doucet) is pleased to submit this proposal for professional services for the above
referenced project.

Attached to this letter proposal are the Scope of Services and Compensation, Opinion of Probable Cost for Design

and Construction of all required infrastructure improvements associated with the development of the southern

portion of the Bastrop Industrial Park. Those improvements include water, wastewater, drainage, subsurface
utility engineering and geotechnical. Additionally, we will assist the City with coordination with Franchise Utilities
(Electric and Gas) if needed.

If our proposal is accepted, we will follow up with a signed PSA. If you have any questions regarding this proposal and
the attachments, please feel free to contact me.

Doucet proposes to complete the scope of services a fee not to exceed $1,618,403. Compensation for our services
will be based on a time and material not to exceed $1,618,403. Doucet will invoice monthly for only services (Time
and Material) rendered. We can provide documentation to support our invoices upon request.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal and look forward to working with you and the rest of your
team.

Sincerely,

Director of Transportation and Public Works

TBPE Firm# 3937
TBPLS Firm# 10105800

COMMITMENT YOU EXPECT.
EXPERIENCE YOU NEED.
PECPLE YOU TRUST.

33



09/14/2022

DOUCET

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Based on our understanding of your needs at this time and the status of this project, we propose
to provide the following specific services:

The project is for the design and construction management of the remainder of the southern portion
of the Bastrop EDC industrial park. This includes the design of approximately 6,680 feet of roadway,
6,680 feet of water main, 8,180 feet of sanitary sewer (gravity), site grading, a lift station, and force
main. Any changes to the Final Plat and/or drainage will be included in our submittals and are
inclusive in our fees.

WORK TO BE PERFORMED

Task 1. Project Management

Task 2. Conceptual Roadway Design
e 30 % DESIGN

Task 3. Survey

Task 4. Geotechnical

Task 5 Subsurface Utility Engineering

Task 6 Preliminary Design (60%)

Task 7 Final Design (90%-100%)

1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Shall designate one Licensed Professional Engineer (Texas) to be responsible for the project
management, and all communications with the Bastrop EDC and the City of Bastrop and its
representatives.

PAGE | 2

1.1 External Meetings - 14 external meetings assumed:

e Attend a kickoff meeting and coordination/progress meeting with the Bastrop EDC
and the City of Bastrop and its representatives and stakeholders, as necessary to
communicate development of the project and design issues.

e Prepare agenda and sign-in sheets for external coordination/progress meetings
conducted by Engineer.

e Prepare meeting minutes for review via email within three (3) business days of the
external coordination/progress meeting conducted by the Engineer.

e Conduct internal coordination meetings as required to advance the development of
the project.

1.2 Internal Team Meetings — As necessary

TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022

34



09/14/2022

v
DOUCET

e Conduct internal coordination meetings as required to advance the development of
the project.

e Prepare meeting minutes, prepare meeting minutes and file in project folder.

1.3 QA/QC

e Provide Quality Assurance and Quality Control by ensuring procedures are
monitored and executed through a system of standardized internal processes.
Projects are subjected to weekly sit-down reviews through mandated Project
Manager meetings. These meetings detail the status of the project to ensure
that Quality Milestones are met. Quality compliance is monitored through a
visual management system designed to easily identify critical check points. A
Constructability Review is also performed by a senior construction manager
to ensure that each project is designed in a cost effective, buildable, and
sustainable manner.

1.4 Communication & Reporting:
e Prepare and maintain routine project record keeping including records of meetings.

e Correspondence and coordination will be handled through & with the concurrence of
the GEC.

e Manage Project activities (including documenting emails, phone, and conference
calls, maintain project files for the length of the project, meeting agendas, meeting
minutes, and schedule meetings), direct Engineer's team/staff, correspond with the
Bastrop EDC and the City of Bastrop and its representatives, and assist them and its
representatives in preparing responses to Project-related inquiries.

1.5 ROW Update Meetings:

¢ Attend ROW coordination meetings as necessary to advance the development of the
project.
1.6 Design Submittal Meetings:

e Conduct internal design review meetings, document, and make necessary
corrections.

e Submit Designs and associated documents for external review.

PAGE | 3 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022

v
DOUCET

e Attend external design review meeting.
1.7 Prepare Monthly Progress Reports with Schedule and Invoicing:

e Submit monthly progress status reports to the board. Progress reports will include
tasks completed, tasks/objectives that are planned for the upcoming periods, lists or
descriptions of items or decisions needed from the Bastrop EDC and the City of Bastrop
and its representatives. Subconsultant progress will be incorporated into the monthly
progress report. A copy of the monthly progress report will be uploaded to ProjectWise.

e Prepare correspondence, invoices, and progress reports monthly in accordance with
current City of Bastrop requirements.

e Maintain a project schedule indicating tasks, subtasks, critical dates, milestones, and
deliverables.

DELIVERABLES:
¢ Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports
¢ Meeting Minutes, Sign-In Sheets, and Agendas

e Project Schedule

2. Conceptual Design 30%

2.1 Hydrologic/Hydraulic Modeling:

e Update/revise H&H models as necessary to ensure latest data and information are
incorporated into the models. Models are complete but will be updated accordingly

2.2 Geometrics Design

e Prepare geometrics per City of Bastrop standards and design criteria including
proposed cross sections, typical sections, roadway centerline, proposed drainage
structures, direction of flow and number of travel lanes, intersecting streets, property
boundaries and information, ROW and easement locations, preliminary pavement
section, driveway locations, horizontal alignment data, profile data, identification of
known utilities.

2.3 Drainage Computations and Drainage Area Map:

e Update/Revise drainage area maps delineating drainage area boundaries based on
USGS topographic maps, local contour maps, and/or field survey data.

PAGE | 4 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022

v
DOUCET

e Update/Revise hydraulic calculations for the design of drainage structures on the
project and inclusion in the plans.

¢ Provide final drainage system plan.

2.4 Construction Schedule / OPCC

¢ Provide construction schedule and Opinion Probable Construction Cost.
2.5 Final Plat
e Provide boundary layouts

e Update/Revise Final Plat for the entire property

DELIVERABLES:
e Design submittal including cost estimate.
¢ Final Plat deliverables (Replat)

3 SURVEYING
3.1 Right of Entry:

e Prepare and mail right of entry letters per the City’s standard for the project team
including geotechnical and environmental. Send a second follow up letter to non-
responsive property owners.

3.2 Field Surveying:

e Survey the remaining roadway corridors at approximately 50-foot sections 80-feet
on either side of the existing roadway centerline including identify existing
landowners, deed recordation information, locate any utilities and trees 12" inch
diameter and greater, locate property boundaries sufficient to re-establish ROW.

e Establish horizontal and vertical control and set temporary benchmarks.

PAGE | 5 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022 38

v
DOUCET

e Develop up to 7 easements

e Does not include survey for offsite utilities and only includes the area associated with
the roadway extension.

DELIVERABLES:
e Right of Entry Letters, Follow Up Letters, and Executed Right of Entry Documents.
e Mapping in 2-D and 3-D MicroStation Files
e DTM of Proposed Corridor

e Easements

4 GEOTECHNICAL

Our geotechnical subconsultants will perform a site visit prior to the initiation of the
fieldwork to assess site conditions and observe dimensions that may affect the
execution of the work. Any variations noted during our site visit that would impact the
work scope, schedule, and/or fee presented in this proposal will be communicated to
the CLIENT.

Based on the limited information provided, we propose to drill the borings to assess
subsurface conditions along the proposed alignment. We anticipate that all borings will
be accessible to a truck mounted drill rig.

Borings will be in the field utilizing site features and/or a handheld, recreational grade,
GPS locator. The borings will be drilled utilizing conventional geotechnical drilling
methods. Samples will be taken using conventional split-spoon and Shelby tube
sampling techniques. Where penetration into water bearing granular soils is required,
rotary-wash drilling techniques will be used. Soil samples collected during the
exploration will be screened in the field utilizing a Photo-lonization Detector (PID) and
a Combustible Gas Indicator (CGl). If readings from these devices indicate potential
environmentally impacted material, field operations will be stopped, and the CLIENT
will be contacted. Environmental drilling, testing, waste characterization, and/or
consulting are not included in our scope of services. Representative portions of
samples will be sealed and packaged for transportation to our laboratory. The
boreholes will be terminated at the scheduled termination depth. Immediately
following drilling activities, water level readings, if encountered and prior to
implementation of rotary-wash drilling techniques, will be recorded for the open
boreholes.

PAGE | 6 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022 39

v
DOUCET

5 SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING

Our Subconsultant will perform SUE services for this project in general accordance
with the recommended practices and procedures described in ASCE publication
CI/ASCE 38-02 “Standard Guidelines for the Collection and Depiction of Existing
Subsurface Utility Data.” As described in the publication, four levels have been
established to describe and depict the quality of subsurface utility information. The
four quality levels are as follows:

Quality Level D (QL“D”) — Information obtained from existing utility records.

Quality Level C (QL“C”) — Surveyed data depicting visible above-ground features
supplemented with QL“D” information.

Quiality Level B (QL“B”) — Two-dimensional horizontal information obtained through
the application and interpretation of non-destructive surface geophysical methods.
Also known as “designating,” this level incorporates QL“C” information and provides
horizontal positioning of subsurface utilities to within approximately 1.0 foot.

Quality Level A (QL“A”) — Three-dimensional horizontal and vertical information
obtained through non-destructive vacuum excavation equipment to expose utilities
at critical points. Also known as “locating,” this level incorporates QL“B” information
and provides horizontal and vertical positioning of subsurface utilities to within
approximately 0.05 feet.

Unless utilities are located, the site will utilize Quality Level B

6. PRELIMINARY DESIGN (60%)

Plans shall be prepared per City of Bastrop standards and criteria including applicable
submittal requirements including cost estimate, checklists, hardcopies, CAD files, comment
responses, design waivers/exceptions, general notes, quantities, updated design schedule,
construction time determination.

6.1 Roadway Design (60%):

e Prepare horizontal and vertical alignment of the roadway and cross streets,
existing and proposed typical sections, ultimate cross sections created at ultimate
increments and at cross drainage structures.

PAGE | 7 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022

v
DOUCET

e Prepare project layout sheets that identify the project area and limits of work.

e Prepare Survey Data Sheets that clearly indicate benchmark locations and
associated control information.

e Prepare Erosion Control sheets
6.2 Drainage:

e Design and detail storm sewer system, drainage outfalls, cross drainage
structures, culverts, channels, roadside ditches, and erosion and sedimentation
control.

6.3 Signage & Markings:

e Prepare signing and marking layout per Texas Manual of Uniform Traffic Control
Devices (TMUTCD). Detail all non-standard signs or marking details as required
for the project.

6.4 Traffic Control:

e If necessary - Prepare traffic control plan sequence of construction narrative,
phase layout sheets, and detour layout as needed to direct traffic around
construction activities per Texas Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices
(TMUTCD).

6.5 Specifications
e Prepare draft specification list and compile specifications.
6.6 Estimate
e Prepare draft bid tabs with quantities and cost
DELIVERABLES:

e 60% PS&E Submittal

7 EINAL DESIGN

CONTINUATION OF DESIGN (90%, 100%, FINAL)

PAGE | 8 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022 41

v
DOUCET

7.1 Roadway Design:

e Prepare horizontal and vertical alignment of the roadway and cross streets,
existing and proposed typical sections, ultimate cross sections created at ultimate
increments, Erosion Control sheets and at cross drainage structures.

e Prepare project layout sheets that identify the project area and limits of work.

e Prepare Survey Data Sheets that clearly indicate benchmark locations and
associated control information.

7.2Drainage:

e Design and detail storm sewer system, drainage outfalls, cross drainage
structures, culverts, channels, roadside ditches, and erosion and sedimentation
control.

7.3 Signhage & Markings:

e Prepare signing and marking layout per Texas Manual of Uniform Traffic Control
Devices (TMUTCD). Detail all non-standard signs or marking details as required
for the project.

7.4 Traffic Control:
7.5 Specifications
e Prepare draft specification list and compile specifications.
7.6 Estimate
e Prepare draft bid tabs with quantities and cost
DELIVERABLES:

e 90% -100% PS&E SUBMITTAL

PAGE | 9 TB-2014-004
August 22, 2022



09/14/2022

Exhibit “B”
COMPENSATION

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

42



09/14/2022 43

7401B Highway 71 West, Suite 160

o Austin, TX 78735
Office: 512.583.2600
DOUCET Fax: 512.583.2601

DoucetEngineers.com

Schedule A

Doucet Fee Schedule (2022)

Personnel Hourly Fee Personnel Hourly Fee
Principal Engineer (PE) $275.00 Principal Surveyor (RPLS) $270.00
Senior Project Manager $260.00 Project Manager (RPLS) $230.00
Project Manager $220.00 Project Surveyor $160.00
Senior Project Engineer (PE) $205.00 Survey Specialist $140.00
Project Engineer Il $185.00 Survey Technician $115.00
Project Engineer Il $175.00
Project Engineer | $160.00 GIS Specialist $150.00
Engineer Associate Il $150.00 GIS Technician $115.00
Engineer Associate Il $140.00 LiDAR Specialist $140.00
Engineer Associate | $125.00 LiDAR Technician $110.00

Aerial Mapping Specialist $140.00
Sr. Construction Manager $170.00 Aerial Mapping Technician $110.00
Sr. Construction Inspector $165.00 Utility Specialist $135.00
Construction Manager $115.00 Utility Technician $105.00
Construction Inspector $110.00

Field Coordinator $155.00
Sr. Civil Technician $155.00 Field Specialist $120.00
Civil Technician $135.00 Crewof 1 $120.00
Assistant Civil Technician $125.00 Crew of 2 $165.00

Crew of 3 $220.00
Senior Planner (AICP) $210.00
Project Planner $160.00 Project Manager - Environmental $180.00
Project Technical Lead $160.00 Environmental Specialist $140.00
Staff Planner $140.00 Envireonmental Technician $115.00
Planning Technician $115.00

Division Administrator $115.00
Project Coordinator $125.00 LiDAR Scanner $110.00
Sr. Operations Assistant $115.00 Drone S645.00
Engineering Intern $85.00
Operations Assistant $80.00 Ground Targets $30/ea.

Concrete Monuments $270/ea.
Expert Witness $550.00 ATV/Boat/Sonar $110/day

Mileage 50.575/mile

Doucet reserves the right to periodically adjust our fee schedule. DA 2022A



COUNTY: Bastrop
PROGRAM ESTIMATE
BASTROP EDC PHASE 2
TYPE: PAVING AND DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING OF GRADING, CONCRETE PAVEMENT,

DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, SIGNING, EROSION CONTROL MEASURES, WATERMAIN, SANITARY SEWER AND LIFT STATION

LENGTH: FEET = 6,680.00
MILES = 1.27

LIMITS: JACKSON ST. LCRA EASMENT TO TECHONOLOGY ST- TECHONOLOGY DR. -PIPELINE EASEMENT TO PARCEL END

PREPARED BY: TYRONE HUTTON & DAVID SPEICHER Date: 07/25/22
BID ITEM DESC | SPEC
NO. NO. NO. NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY PRICE AMOUNT
1| 100 6002 PREPARING ROW STA 66.80 $7,329.01 $489,577.53
2 110 6001 EXCAVATION (ROADWAY) cYy 13660.00 $7.67 $104,772.20
3| 132 | 6004 EMBANKMENT (FINAL)(DENS CONT)(TY B) CY 20000.00 $10.54 $210,700.00
4] 152 6001 ROAD GRADER WORK (ORD COMP) STA 66.80 $212.64 $14,204.02
5[ 160 6003 FURNISHING AND PLACING TOPSOIL (4") SY 16330.00 $1.30 $21,229.00
6] 164 6035 DRILL SEEDING (PERM) (RURAL) (CLAY) SY 16330.00 $0.16 $2,612.80
7| 168 6001 VEGETATIVE WATERING MG 328.00 $13.06 $4,282.04
8l 169 6001 SOIL RETENTION BLANKETS (CL 1) (TY A) SY 16330.00 $0.99 $16,166.70
9| 216 6001 PROOF ROLLING HR 0.65 $82.81 $53.83
10] 260 6002 LIME (HYDRATED LIME (SLURRY)) TON 248.00 $222.38 $55,150.24
11] 260 6079 LIME TRT (SUBGRADE)(6") SY 41814.00 $2.61 $109,134.54
12{ 310 6005 PRIME COAT (AE-P) GAL 8083.00 $3.84 $30,998.31
13| 360 6001 CONC PVMT (CONT REINF - CRCP) (7") SY 32329.00 $147.70 $4,774,831.66
14| 464 6026 RC PIPE (CL V){(24 IN) LF 210.00 $146.00 $30,658.95
15 467 6006 SET (TY 1) (24 IN) (4: 1) (C) EA 10.00 $2,778.52 $27,785.15
16[ 500 6001 MOBILIZATION LS 1.00 $280,000.00 $280,000.00
17 BONDS AND INSURANCES LS 1.00 $141,835.00 $141,835.00
18 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY LS 1.00 $141,835.00 $141,835,00
19 506 6003 ROCK FILTER DAMS (INSTALL) (TY 3) LE 45.00 $57.72 $2,597.40
20| 506 6011 ROCK FILTER DAMS (REMQOVE) LF 45.00 $10.34 $465.08
21 506 6020 CONSTRUCTION EXITS (INSTALL) (TY 1) SY 83.00 $25.18 $2,089.94
22 506 6024 CONSTRUCTION EXITS (REMOVE) SY 83.00 $7.67 $636.61
23| 506 6038 TEMP SEDMT CONT FENCE (INSTALL) LF 13360.00 $2.96 $39,478.80
24 506 6039 TEMP SEDMT CONT FENCE (REMOVE) LF 13360.00 $0.83 $11,088.80
25 506 6041 BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (INSTL) (12") LF 60.00 $5.04 $302.10
26| 529 6007 CONC CURB & GUTTER (TY I) LF 13360.00 $23.05 $307,948.00
27| 531 6016 CURB RAMPS (TY 21) EA 4.00 $1,934.31 $7,737.22
28| 644 6001 IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TY10BWG(1)SA(P) EA 6.00 $617.90 $3,707.37
29| 690 6040 INSTALL OF CONTROL CABINET(GRND MNT) EA 3.00 $12,629.00 $37,887.00
30| 6295 6001 DECORATIVE LIGHTING ASSEMBLY EA 32.00 $2,600.00 $83,200.00
31| 7017 | 6005 SANITARY SEWER (8IN) (PVC) (C900) LF 8180.00 $94.76 $775,136.80
32 7017 6108 SANITARY SEWER LATERAL (6")(PVC) LF 700.00 $68.58 $48,006.00
33| 7017 6125 MANHOLE (SAN SWR)(48 IN) EA 15.00 $5,000.00 $75,000.00
34| 7017 6158 SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT EA 20.00 $40.00 $800.00
35| 7049 6007 WATER MAIN PIPE (PVC) (12-IN) LF 6680.00 $132.00 $881,760.00
36| 7049 6011 FIRE LINES (6-IN) LF 300.00 $86.00 $25,800.00
37| 7049 6076 SERVICE LINE (SHORT SIDE) (1-1/2"TO 2") EA 7.00 $2,305.27 $16,136.89
38| 7049 6077 SERVICE LINE (LONG SIDE) (1-1/2"TO 2") EA 7.00 $4,799.01 $33,593.07
39| 7049 6084 TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE (8IN X 16IN) EA 7.00 $293.63 $2,055.41
40( 7049 6104 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EA 23.00 $6,326.07 $145,499.50
41| 7049 6162 GATE VALVE (12 IN) EA 7.00 $3,000.00 $21,000.00
42 7100 6032 3" SCH 40 PVC CONDUIT LF 6680.00 $25.00 $167,000.00
43 SECONDARY SERVICE PEDESTAL EA 9.00 $1,200.00 $10,800.00
44 6" ELECTRICL RIGID CONDUIT SLEEVES LF 6680.00 $35.00 $233,800.00
45 LIFT STATION 40 GPM EA 1.00 $350,000.00 $350,000.00
PROJECT TOTAL $9,739,353
15% CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY $1,460,903
| CONSTRUCTION COST $11,200,256
ENGINEERING & DESIGN SURVEY $1,460,903
GEOTECHNICAL $80,000
SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING $60,000
7 EASEMENTS $17,500
[ TOTAL ENGINEERING COST $1,618,403
l GRAND TOTAL (includes contegency) $12,818,659

44



09/14/2022

Exhibit “C”

REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL INSURANCE DOCUMENTS

The Professional shall comply with each and every condition contained herein. The Professional
shall provide and maintain the minimum insurance coverage set forth below during the term of its
agreement with the BEDC. Any Subcontractor(s) hired by the Professional shall maintain insurance
coverage equal to that required of the Professional. It is the responsibility of the Professional to
assure compliance with this provision. The City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation
accepts no responsibility arising from the conduct, or lack of conduct, of the Subcontractor.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF INSURANCE DOCUMENT

With reference to the foregoing insurance requirements, Professional shall specifically endorse
applicable insurance policies as follows:

1.

6.

10.
11

12.

The City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation shall be named as an additional
insured with respect to General Liability and Automobile Liability on_a separate

endorsement.

A waiver of subrogation in favor of The City of Bastrop Economic Development
Corporation shall be contained in the Workers Compensation and all liability policies and
must be provided on a separate endorsement.

All insurance policies shall be endorsed to the effect that The City of Bastrop Economic
Development Corporation will receive at least thirty (30} days written notice prior to
cancellation or non-renewal of the insurance.

All insurance policies, which name The City of Bastrop Economic Development
Corporation as an additional insured, must be endorsed to read as primary and non-
contributory coverage regardless of the application of other insurance.

Chapter 1811 of the Texas Insurance Code, Senate Bill 425 §2(R) of 2011, states that
the above endorsements cannof be on the certificate of insurance. Separate
endorsements must be provided for cach of the above.

All insurance policies shall be endorsed to require the insurer to immediately notify The
City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation of any material change in the
insurance coverage.

All liability policies shall contain no cross liability exclusions or insured versus insured
restrictions.

Required limits may be satisfied by any combination of primary and umbrella liability
insurances.

Professional may maintain reasonable and customary deductibles, subject to approval by
The City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation.

[nsurance must be purchased from insurers having a minimum A.M. Best rating of B+.
All insurance must be written on forms filed with and approved by the Texas Department
of Insurance. (ACORD 25 2010/05). Coverage must be written on an occurrence form.
Contractual Liability must be maintained covering the Professional’s obligations contained
in the contract. Certificates of Insurance shall be prepared and executed by the insurance
company or its authorized agent and shall contain provisions representing and warranting
all endorsements and insurance coverages according to requirements and instructions
contained herein.

BEDC Professional Services Agreement

45



09/14/2022

E3.

14.

Upon request, Professional shall furnish The City of Bastrop Economic Development
Corporation with certified copies of all insurance policies.

A valid certificate of insurance verifving each of the coverages required above shall be
issued directly to the City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation within ten (10)
business days after contract award and prior to starting any work by the successful
Professional’s insurance agent of record or insurance company. Also, prior to the start of
any work and at the same time that the Certificate of Insurance is issued and sent to the
City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation, all required endorsements identified
in sections A, B, C and D above shall be sent to the City of Bastrop Economic Development
Corporation. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be sent to;

City of Bastrop Economic Development Corporation
Attn; Executive Director

301 Highway 71 West, Suite 214

Bastrop, Texas 78602

BEDC Protessional Services Agreement

46



09/14/2022

Exhibit “D”
EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE

BEDC Professional Services Agreement [

47



09/14/2022 48
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE UkBrYY)
| W Accti: 1180451 101181201

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS GERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHCRIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{las) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or e endorsed. I
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sub]ect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may roquire an endorsement. A statament on this
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in llsu of auch andorsemant(s).

PRODUCER CONTACY  338-826-8365
Lockton Companies, LLC PHONE I FAX
3657 Briarpark Dr., Sulte 700 {hic. i {AJC, No):
Houstop, TX 77042 | ADORESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
IKSURER A : Indemnity Insurance Co. of North America 43575
"BOUCET & ASSOCIATES, INC. INSURERS :
7401 W US HIGHWAY 71 STE B160 INSURER C :
AUSTIN, TX 78735-5264 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

NER ADDL[EUAR|
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSO | wAvD POLICY KUMBER RODIYYYY 15%%% LIMITE
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 3
CLAIMS-MADE [::J OGCCUR | PREMISES (Ea occurrance} | §
MED EXP (Any one parson) 3
PERSONAL SADVINJURY |8
GEN'. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5
poucy %8S [ Jioc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 5
OTHER; $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY fé‘;% . Eg's‘a‘ns‘:.e (1271
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per persar) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULER
ATTOS AUTOS BODILY MJURY (Per accldant) | 3
NON-OWNED " PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Par sceidant)
$
UHMBRELLA LiAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 3
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
oeo | | Revenmions . $
WORKERS COMPENSATION X I PER ] l OA‘H—
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN A ——
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE EL. Al AR
A |OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED? NiA CT0042903 1012021 | 1012022 EACH ACCIDENT $
(Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §  1.000.000
¥ yas, descibe under
DESCRIPTION OF GPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE - POLICY LipgT | 3 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIGLES {ACORD 101, Additional Ramurks Schedulw, may be attached H more space s required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DOUCET & ASSQCIATES, INC.
7401 W US HIGHWAY 71 STE 8160
AUSTIN, TX 78735

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CAMCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
IH  ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

C N et L -

ACORD 23 (20186/03)

Be:
Tho ACORD name and logo ara registerad marks of ACORD

TION. All rIghts reserved.



09/14/2022
ACORD.

Client#: 96019

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DOUCEASCT 49

DATE (MWDD/VYYY)
10/12/12021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WANVED, subjact to the terms and conditions of the policy, cartain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lisu of such endorsement(s).

Houston, TX 77024

PRODUCER ﬁgﬁ‘éﬁc‘r
usl Southwest | PHERE, eq: 713 490-4600 | T8, oy 713-490-4700
9811 Katy Freeway, Suite 500 EMAL

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE HAIC R

7401B Hwy. 71 West #160
Austin, TX 78735

713 490-4600 INSURER 4 ; Continental Casualty Company 20443
INSURED . INSURER 8 ; Beazley Insurance Company, Inc. 3A7540
Doucet & Assaciates, Inc. insuner ¢ ; National Fire Insurance Co. of Hartford 20478

IMSURER D :

INSURERE ;

INSURERF ¢

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLUICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

e TYPE OF INSURANCE DL Saar] POLICY NUMBER GRS [ AaCY e, LiMITS
A | _X| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 2087785945 10/17/2021{10/17/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE 32,000,000
“—“ CLAIMS-MADE EZ! OCCUR PAMIREIGRSNTED ) |5300,000
|| MED EXP {Any one persony | 510,600
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 52,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 54,000,000
:\ covcy | X 8% [ Jiac PRODUCTS - GOMPIOP AGG | 54,000,000
OTHER s
C | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 2087935018 10/17/2021110/17/2022 FoMEhens " oc MIT— 1.1,000,000
Xi any auto BODILY INJURY (Perparson) | $
: Qe y [ | SoHEDuLED BODLLY INJURY (Per acsidant) | $
X s ony | X ATy P e AMAGE d
$
A | X|UMBRELLALAB | X | gecur B20877B6089 10/17/2021|10/17/2022) EACH OCCURRENCE 55,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 55,000,000
OED l XI reTenTIoN 10000 s
AND EMPLOYERS* LIABILITY " (B | [
A?\E@E&Z&lE;E%EIPEQ%I”%%%}ECUTNE NIA E.L. EACHACCIDENT. 3
(Mcndnlory In NH) EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
DESCRIPTION OF DPERATIONS below EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMUT—I 5
B |Professional Liab C24DF3210401 [10/17/2021110/17/2022 $5,000,000 pear claim
Claims Made & Retro:06/19/92 $5,000,000 anni agyr,
Reported Pol

Professional Land Surveyors, Inc,
Accusurve, Inc.
Earth Quest, Inc.

(Sees Attached Descriptions)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schadule, may be attached if more space Is required)

The General Liability policy(s} contain a blanket additional insured endorsement that provides additional
insured status to the certificate when thers is a written contract between the named insured and the

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Doucset and Assoclates Inc.
7401 B Hwy. 71 West, Suite 160
Austin, TX 78735-0000

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREC IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Goss €. QRomsrarnar~

ACORD 25 {2016/03) 1 of2
#533716606/M33690073

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATICON. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and lego are registered marks of ACORD

SpiZp




09/14/2022

50

DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

certificate holder that raquires such status, but only in ragard to work performed on or bahalf of the

named insured. The General Liability and Commarclal Auto policy(s) contaln a blanket walver of subragation
endorsement that provides walver of subrogation to the certificate holder when there Is a written contract
between the namad Insurad and the cortificate holder that raquires such status, except whers prohibited by
law. The General Liabllity policy contains a blanket Primary and Non-Contributory endorsement in faver of
the certificate holder when there Is a written contract between the named Insured and certificate holder

that requiras such atatus. The Umbrella policy is "follow-form" of the underlying General Liabllity and
Commerclal Auto Policy(s).

Description: *FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES*™

SAGITTA 25.3(2016/03) 2 of 2
#533716606/M33690073



09/14/2022 51

pastrop

EDC Agenda Item: 3.5

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022
Agenda Item: Discussion and possible action concerning the location of the BEDC office.

Submitted by: BEDC Staff

As there has recently been discussion about moving the BEDC office to a different location, Staff
needs input from the Board about renewing the lease at the current location, 301 Hwy 71 West,
which expires at the end of September.

The building owner has agreed to a three-month extension at the current monthly rate of $3,400 to
allow the Board and CEO time to make a decision to either move to another location or stay at the
current office.

Recommendation — Discuss the options and authorize Chair Spencer to sign a month-to-month
lease extension, and to pursue discussions about other available properties.

[RECOMMENDED MOTION] — I make the motion to authorize the Board Chair to approve a lease
amendment and to pursue other options for the location of the BEDC office.




09/14/2022

pastrop

EDC Agenda Item: 3.6

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

Agenda Item: Discussion and consideration on approving an employment agreement with Bret
Gardella as the Chief Executive Officer of the BEDC.

Prepared by: BEDC Staff

At a special board meeting on September 9, 2022, the BEDC Board of Directors approved moving
forward with the creation of an employment contract with Bret Gardella based on the terms of the
offer letter discussed in executive session.

This agenda item allows the Board to take action on the employment contract.

Recommendation — Staff respectfully requests that the Board consider and take action deemed
appropriate.

[RECOMMENDED MOTION] — I make the motion to approve the employment agreement between
Bret Gardella and the BEDC, and to authorize the BEDC Board Chair to execute the agreement
and any other necessary documentation.

52



09/14/2022 53

pastrop

EDC Agenda Item: 3.7

AGENDA MEMORANDUM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022
Agenda Item: Discussion and possible action on BEDC Consultant Weathers’ agreement.

Prepared by: BEDC Staff

This item was requested in order for the Board to discuss the possibility of modifying the scope of
work in the agreement with Steve Weathers’.

Recommendation — Staff respectfully requests Board action deemed appropriate.

[RECOMMENDED MOTION] — I make the motion to authorize the BEDC Board Chair to modify
the scope of work in the agreement with consultant Steve Weathers.




	1.0 09_19_22_BEDC_Board_Meeting_Agenda
	3.1 Minutes Memo
	3.1.1 Draft 08-15-22 BEDC Board Meeting Minutes
	3.1.2 Draft 08-26-22 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	3.1.3 Draft 09-09-22 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	3.2 2022-8 EDC Mthly Rpt
	3.2 Financials Memo
	3.2.3 Consulting Payments as of August 31
	3.3 Doucet Memo
	3.4 Doucet Southern Park Memo
	3.4.1 Draft Resolution R-2022-0009 Doucet Associates
	3.4.2 Doucet PSA
	3.5 Office Lease Memo
	3.6 Bret Gardella Memo
	3.7 Consultant Cover Memo



